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Washington, D.C. 

In the Matter of 1 
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) Investigation No. 337-TA-60 
CERTAIN AUTOMATIC CRANKPIN GRINDERS ) 

NOTICE OF INVESTIGATION 

Notice is hereby given that a complaint was filed with the United 

States International Trade Commission on November 15, 1978 (and amended on 

November 29, 1978,and December 1, 1978), under section 337 of the Tariff 

Act of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), on behalf of the Landis Tool 

Company, Waynesboro, Pa. 17268, alleging that unfair methods of competition 

and unfair acts exist in the importation of certain automatic crankpin 

grinders into the United States, or in their sale, by reason of the alleged 

coverage of such automatic crankpin grinders by claims 5, 8, 9, 11, 16, 

19, and 24 of U.S. Letters Patent 3,118,258, owned by Litton Industrial 

Products, Inc. The amended complaint alleges that the effect or tendency 

of such unfair methods of competition and unfair acts is to destroy o r  

substantially injure an industry, efficiently and economically operated, 

in the United States. 

be permanently excluded from entering the United States, and such additional 

temporary and'permanent relief as the Commission authorizes. 

Complainant requests that the articles in question 
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Having considered the amended complaint, the U,S. International 

Trade Commission, on pecember 12, 1978,ORDERED THAT-- 

1, Pursuant t o  subsection (b) of section 337 o f  the Tariff Act 

of 1930, as amended, an investigation be instituted to determine under sub- 

section (c) whether, on the basis of the allegations set forth in the 

amended complaint and the evidence adduced, there is a violation of sub- 

sectiop (a) of this section in the unauthorized importation of certain 

automatic crankpin grinders into the United States, or in their sale, by 

reason of the alleged coverage o f  such automatic crankpin grinders by 

claims 5,  8, 9, 11, 16, 19, and 24 of U.S. Letters Patent 3,118,258, the 

effect or tendency of which is to destroy or substantially injure an 

industry, efficiently and economically operated, in the United States. 

2. For the purpose of this investigation so instituted, the 

following are hereby named as parties: 

a. The complainant: Landis Tool Company 
Division of Litton Industrial Products, Inc. 
Waynesboro, Pa. 17268 

b. The respondents are the following companies alleged to 

be involved in the unauthorized importation of such 

articles into the United States or in their sale, and 

are parties upon which the complaint and this notice are 

to be served: 

i. Newall Machine Tool Company, Ltd. 
Oundle Road 
Peterborough, England 

ii. The Ford Motor Company 
The American Road 
Dearborn, Michigan 48121 
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c. Robert M. M. Seto, U.S. International Trade Commission, 

701 E Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20436, is hereby 

named Commission investigative attorney and a party to 

this investigation. 

3. For the purpose of the investigation so instituted, Chief 

Administrative Law Judge Donald K. Duvall shall designate the presiding 

officer. 

Responses must be submitted by the named respondents in accordance 

with section 210.21 of the U.S.  International Trade Commission's Rules of 

Practice and Procedure, as amended (19 CFR 210.21). Pursuant to sections 

201.16(d) and 210.21(a) of the Rules, such responses will be considered 

by the U.S.  International Trade Commission if received no later than 20 

days after the date of service of the amended complaint. Extensions of 

time for submitting a response will not be granted unless good and sufficient 

cause therefor is shown. 

Failure of a respondent to file a timely response to each allega- 

tion in the amended complaint and in this notice may be deemed to constitute 

a waiver of the right to appear and contest the allegations, and will 

authorize the presiding officer and the U.S. International Trade Commission, 

without further notice to the respondents, to find the facts to be as 

alleged in the amended complaint and in this notice and to enter both a 

recommended determination and a final determination containing such findings. 
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The amended complaint i s  a v a i l a b l e  f o r  i n s p e c t i o n  by i n t e r e s t e d  

persons a t  t h e  Office o f  t h e  S e c r e t a r y ,  U.S. I n t e r n a t i o n a l  Trade Commission, 

701 E S t r e e t ,  N . W . ,  Washington, D.C. 20436, and i n  t h e  New York C i t y  Office 

of t h e  Commission, 6 World Trade Center .  

S e c r e t a r y  

ISSUED: December 1 2 ,  1978 



United States International Trade Commission 
Washington, D.C. 20436 

In the Matter of j 
1 

1 
Certain Automatic Crankpin Grinders 

Investigation No. 337-TA-60 

COMMISSION DETERMINATION AND ORDER 

Introduction 

The U . S .  International Trade Commission conducted investigation No. 

337-TA-60 pursuant to section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended (19 

U.S.C. 1337), of alleged unfair methods of competition and unfair acts in the 

unauthorized importation and sale of certain automatic crankpin grinders. 

December 4, 1979, the Commission unanimously determined that there was a 

violation of the statute in the importation, or sale of certain automatic 

On 
II 

crankpin grinders which infringe claims 8, 16, and 19  of U.S. Letters Patent 

No. 3,118,258.  The Commission determined, however, that the public interest 

factors enaerated in subsections (d) and (f) of the statute preclude the 

imposition of a remedy. 

Determination 

Having reviewed the record in this matter, the Commission has 

determined-- 

1. That there is a violation of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, 

as amended, in the importation and sale of certain automatic crankpin grinders 
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which infringe claims 8, 16, and 19 of U.S. Letters Patent No. 3,218,258, the 

effect or tendency of which is to destroy or substantially injure an industry, 

efficiently and economically operated, in the United States; 

2. That the effect of a remedy upon the public health and welfare, 

competitive conditions in the U.S. economy, the production of like or directly 

competitive articles in the United States, and U.S. consumers precludes the 

issuance of an exclusion order or a cease and desist order pursuant to 

subsection (d) or (f) of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended. - 1/ 

Order - 
Accordingly, it is hereby ordered that-- 

1. Investigation No. 337-TA-60 is terminated by the issuance and 

publication of the Commission determination and order in the Federal Register 

and by the issuance of this Commission determination, order, and opinions; and 

1/ Chairman Parker determines that the appropriate relief in this case, in 
the light of the public interest and the remedial nature of section 337, is 
the issuance of an exclusion order preventing the importation of infringing 
articles during the life of the patent except (1) under license or (2) in the 
absence of the complainant granting a license when payment in the amount equal 
to but not to exceed the maximum license fee previously established by the 
patent owner Landis in arm's length agreement between the patent owner and any 
of its licensees is tendered by the importer to, t h e  patent owner. In the 
absence of the previous disclosure and establishnent of such an amount, the 
amount that would be required to be tendered would be $2,500 per imported 
article. 

pursuant to subsection (d) of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 
amended, preventing importation of infringing articles during the life of the 
patent except under license is the appropriate means to remedy the violation 
of section 337. 

Commissioner Moore determines that the issuance of an exclusion order 
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This order s h a l l  be served upon each p a r t y  of record  in t h i s  2. 

i n v e s t i g a t i o n  and upon the U.S. Department of Health,  Education,  and Welfare, 

t h e  U.S.  Department o f  J u s t i c e ,  and the  Federal  Trade Commission. 

By order of the Commission. 

Issued:  December 1 7 ,  1979 

S e c r e t a r y  





OPINION OF VICE CiK' '~Q\?4  ALBERGER AND COMMISSIONERS BEDELL AND STERN 

Procedural history 

A complaint was filed with the Commission on November 15, 1978, and 

amended on November 29, 1978, and December 1, 1978, under section 337 of the 

Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, on behalf of the Landis Tool Company, 

Waynesboro, Pennsylvania 17268. The complaint as amended alleged that unfair 

methods of competition and unfair acts exist in the importation of certain 

automatic crankpin grinders into the United States, or in their sale, by 

reason of the alleged coverage of such automatic crankpin grinders by claims 

5,  8, 9, 11, 16, 19, and 24 of U . S .  Letters Patent 3,118,258. The patent is 

owned by Litton Industrial Products, Inc., and the complainant is a division 

of the patent owner. The patent is also licensed in the United States t o  

Warner and Swasey Company, and the invention has been patented in Australia, 

France, Great Britain, Italy, Japan, and West Germany. 

The Commission on December 12, 1978, instituted an investigation to 

determine whether there is a violation of the statute. The notice of 

investigation was published in the Federal Register on December 15, 1978 (43 

F.R. 58642). Named as respondents in the notice of investigation were a 

foreign manufacturer, Newall Machine Tool Company, Ltd., of Peterborough, 

England, and a user of the accused grinders, the Ford Motor Company of 

Dear born, Michigan. 

On May 29, 1979, respondent Newall filed a motion for summary 

determination (motion docket No. 60-3) based on the claim that there is no 
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substantial injury to the domestic market. The motion was opposed by. the 

complainant and the Commission investigative attorney. The administrative law 

judge denied the motion in an order issued June 28, 1979. On the same date, 

the administrative law judge also denied the following motions: (1) 

respondent Newall's June 4, 1979, motion to have the investigation designated 

more complicated (motion docket No. 60-4); (2) the Commission investigative 

attorney's rn.)tion for a thirty-day extension of the hearing date (motion 

docket No. 60-9); and (3) respondent Newall's June 4, 1979, motion to file a 

supplemental answer (motion docket No. 60-5).  

Following a prehearing conference on July 2, 1979, an evidentiary hearing 

was held by the administrative law judge from July 3, 1979, until July 13, 

1979. At the close of the hearing, complainant moved for a temporary 

exclusion order (motion docket No. 60-101, based upon the belief that an 

infringing grinder was to be imported in September. The motion was opposed by 

the other parties. In an order issued August 7, 1979, the administrative law 

judge denied complainant's motion because it was brought at a time too late 

for a meaningful decision on the temporary relief. 

Pursuant to the administrative law judge's request for an additional 

fifteen days in which to file his recommended determination, the Commission 

granted the requested delay and ordered the recommended determination to be 

filed by September 26, 1979. 

The administrative law judge determined and recommended that: 

There i s  a violation of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 
amended, in the unauthorized importation into the United States, and 
the sale of certain automatic crankpin grinders by reason of the 
fact that these automatic crankpin grinders infringe United States 
Letters Patent 3,118,258 with the effect or tendency to destroy or 
substantially injure an industry, efficiently and economically 
operated in the United States. 
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In submissions filed October 10, 1979, and October 12, 1079, the 

Commission investigative attorney and the complainant, respectively, supported 

the recommended determination, findings of fact, and conclusions of law of the 

administrative law judge. No exceptions were filed by respondent Ford Motor 

Company. Respondent Newall filed extensive exceptions to the recommended 

determination and alternative findings of fact and conclusions of law on 

October 12, 1979. 

Respondent Newall took exception to the recommended determination on the 

ground that the record requires a determination that: 

(1) the automatic crankpin grinders imported by respondent do 
not infringe any valid U . S .  patent; 

(2) the importation of automatic crankpin grinders manufactured 
by respondent does not have the effect or tendency to destroy or 
substantially injure the U.S. industry for such grinders; 

(3) the domestic industry for automatic crankpin grinders is 
not efficiently and economically operated; 

(4 )  complainant has used patent rights to violate U.S. 
antitrust laws; 

(5) complainant is barred from pursuing this investigation by 
reason of laches; and 

(6) the exclusion from the U.S. marketplace of automatic 
crankpin grinders manufactured by respondent would have a 
significant and deleterious effect upon the health and welfare of 
the U.S. public not outweighed by potential injury to the domestic 
industry. 

The Commission in a notice issued October 11, 1979, announced that it 

would hold a hearing on October 2 9 ,  1979, for two purposes. First, the 

Commission would hear oral arguments concerning the administrative law judge's 

recommended determination of September 26, 1979. Second, the Commission would 
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hear presentations concerning the appropriate relief, bonding, and the public 

interest in the event that the Commission were to determine that there is a 

violation of section 337. 

Complainant, respondent Newall, and the Commission investigative attorney 

presented oral arguments concerning the recommended determination and 

information concerning relief, bonding, and the public interest at the 

Commission hearing. Respondent Ford's presentation at the hearing was limited 

to oral argument on the recommended determination. 

Commission investigative attorney submitted that the appropriate relief is the 

issuance of a cease and desist order preventing respondent Newall from 

accepting any orders for infringing crankpin grinders that are ultimately to 

be used in the United States until the expiration of the patent. 

Complainant and the 

Pursuant to the notice of October 11, 1979, written submissions were 

received from the four parties, two government agencies, and two corporations 

which use crankpin grinders. The Department of Health, Education, and Welfare 

filed a statement that it has no advice or information to offer with respect 

to public health or other interests of United States consumers on October 19, 

1979. In a letter dated November 11, 1979, the Federal Trade Commission 

advised the Commission that it had no comments to make on the certain 

automatic crankpin grinder investigation. 

General Motors Corporation filed a statement with the Commission November 

13, 1979, opposing that portion of the administrative law judge's 

recorxiendation which stated that "respondent's contention that orders placed 

before but not delivered until after expiration of the suit patent cannot 
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constitute injury under section 337 is fallacious". 

that if this portion oE the recommendation were adopted, grinders ordered 

before patent expiration would not be passed through customs if importation 

occurred after patent expiration. 

the administrative law judge's recommendation has the effect of extending the 

patent monopoly by the time delay between patent expiration and the date when 

a pre-expiration order is filled. 

General Notors alleges 

General Motors submits that this portion of 

Caterpillar Tractor Company, in a submission filed November 13, 1979, 

expressed the view that a decision in favor of excluding these imports would 

have an inhibiting and negative effect on its ability to produce diesel 

engines in 1980 and 1981. Caterpillar alleged that there is a direct 

relationship between excluding importation of machines and the ability of U.S. 

engine manufacturers to extend or refine engine manufacturing capabilities. 

Violation of section 337 

Having considered the administrative record including the administrative 

law judge's recommended determination, the transcript of the Commission 

hearing of October 29, 1979, and the written submissions, we determine that 

there is a violation of section 337 in the importation into and sale in the 

United States of certain automatic crankpin grinders, the effect or tendency 

of which is to destroy or substantially injure an industry, efficiently and 

economically operated, in the United States. 

fact and conclusions of law of the administrative law judge, more fully 

discussed below, to the extent not inconsistent with this opinion. The 

We hereby adopt the findings of 

reasons for our findings are as follows. 
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a. P a t e n t  I n f r i n g e m e n t .  The o n l y  u n f a i r  method o f  c o m p e t i t i o n  or 

u n f a i r  act a l l e g e d  i n  t h i s  i n v e s t i g a t i o n  i s  i n f r i n g e m e n t  o f  U.S. L e t t e r s  

P a t e n t  No. 3 , 1 1 8 , 2 5 8 .  T h i s  p a t e n t  was i s s u e d  on  January 2 1 ,  1964, t o  Landis  

T o o l  Company as a s s i g n e e  o f  t h e  named j o i n t  i n v e n t o r s ,  Ralph E. P r i c e  and 

Harold E. B a l s i g e r .  

L i t t o n  I n d u s t r i a l  P r o d u c t s ,  I n c .  as h e r e  r e p r e s e n t e d  by compla inant  L a n d i s  

T o o l  Company. Claims 5 ,  8 ,  9 ,  11 ,  1 6 ,  1 9 ,  and 24 were a l l e g e d  t o  be  i n f r i n g e d  

by t h e  compla int .  Claims 8 ,  16 ,  and 19 were d e s i g n a t e d  as exemplary i n  t h e  

e v i d e n t i a r y  h e a r i n g ,  and no e v i d e n c e  was t a k e n  c o n c e r n i n g  t h e  other p a t e n t  

claims. 

T i t l e  t o  t h e  p a t e n t  i s  h e l d  through mesne ass ignment  b y  

The i n v e n t i o n  i s  d i r e c t e d  t o  a g r i n d e r  t h a t  a u t o m a t i c a l l y  g r i n d s  a l l  t h e  

c r a n k p i n s  i n  a c r a n k s h a f t .  A c r a n k p i n  i s  a c r i t i c a l  component o f  every 

i n t e r n a l  combust ion e n g i n e ,  and serves t o  c o n v e r t  t h e  l i n e a l  mot ion  of t h e  

p i s t o n s  up and down i n  the  c y l i n d e r  t o  a rotary m o t i o n ,  which i s  t h e n  

communicated t o  t h e  whee ls  or o t h e r  d r i v e  mechanisms. 

Respondents  m a i n t a i n  t h a t  the  Newall g r i n d e r s  do n o t  i n f r i n g e  t h e  s u i t  

p a t e n t  b e c a u s e  t h e  s u i t  p a t e n t  i s  d i r e c t e d  t o  t h e  c o n c e p t  o f  employing a 

s p e c i a l . r o t a r y  i n d e x e r  i n  a p i n  g r i n d e r  and t h a t  both claims 8 and 1 6  are 

d i r e c t e d  t o  t h i s  spec i f i c  i n d e x i n g  d e v i c e .  

d i f f e r e n t  from t h e  Newall c o n c e p t  which a l l e g e d l y  o n l y  mechanized t h e  p r i o r  

manual i n d e x i n g  a c t i o n  mentioned as pr ior  art i n  t h e  Rock r e i s s u e  p a t e n t  

2 4 , 0 9 1 .  It i s  a l l e g e d  that claim 1 9  is n o t  i n f r i n g e d  by t h e  Newall g r i n d e r s  

for t h e  same r e a s o n s  t h a t  r e s p o n d e n t ' s  g r i n d e r s  do n o t  i n f r i n g e  claims 8 and 

1 6 ,  i .e .  b e c a u s e  t h e y  do n o t  i n c l u d e  t h e  r e l a t i v e  r o t a t i o n  type o f  i n d e x e r  and 

T h i s  special i n d e x e r  i s  p a t e n t a b l y  
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the size control member does not actuate the indexing mechanisms. Moreover, 

it is alleged that claim 19 uses the concept of stopping the work support or 

table and then adjusting the position of a pin with respect to the stopped 

table. 

While both complainant's grinders and the imported grinders index 

radially and laterally simultaneously, in the imported machine a separate 

motor provides the power for this indexing of the crankshaft relative to the 

grinding wheel in order to bring the next crankpin into alignment for 

grinding. In complainant's machine, the indexing power is generated by the 

workhead (chucks) as it continues to rotate during indexing. Complainant's 

expert, Dr. Youngdahl, testified that this different mode of operations still 

performs essentially the same function as the suit patent since the turning of 

the imported crankshaft, even when the chucks are stopped, still causes 

rotation of the crankshaft relative to the chucks within the scope of claim 

16. In addition, both indexing methods achieve the same result of bringing 

another crankpin into position for grinding. 

We believe that the record supports the administrative law judge's 

determination that all elements of claims 8,  16, and 19 read on the structure 

and mode of operation of the Newall automatic crankpin grinders installed at 

the Ford Cleveland engine plant. 

a patent is infringed when the accused device does the sape work as the 

patented invention in substantially the same way and accomplishes the same 

result. Graver Tank Mfg. Co., Inc. V. Linde Air Products, 339 U . S .  605 (1950). 

Moreover, under the doctrine of equivalents, 

b. Validity. Complainant relies on the statutory presumption of 

. validity (35 U.S.C. 282) and presented uncontested evidence to show that its \ 
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5-R automatic  crankpin g r inde r  i s  covered by the  s u i t  p a t e n t .  Kespondents 

a s s e r t  t h a t  the  pa ten t  is  i n v a l i d  on a number of grounds,  a l l  of which were 

r e j e c t e d  by t h e  admin i s t r a t ive  law judge. 

(i) Anticipat ion--102(a) .  35 U.S. Code 102 provides:  

A person s h a l l  be e n t i t l e d  t o  a pa t en t  un le s s  ( a )  t h e  inven t ion  
was known or used by o the r s  i n  t h i s  count ry ,  o r  patented or  
descr ibed i n  a p r i n t e d  pub l i ca t ion  i n  t h i s  or  a fo re ign  count ry ,  
before  the invent ion  thereof  by the  app l i can t  f o r  the  pa t en t  . . 

Respondents argue t h a t  t h e  automatic  crankpin g r inde r  embodying the  s u i t  

pa t en t  was shown and operated by complainant a t  a pub l i c  machine t o o l  show i n  

Chicago i n  September, 1960, f i v e  months before  the  s u i t  pa t en t  was f i l e d .  

Respondents'  argument is without  merit s i n c e  s e c t i o n  102(a) i s  d i r e c t e d  t o  a 

p r i o r  use or  knowledge of o t h e r s  i n  t h i s  o r  a f o r e i g n  count ry  a t  a t i m e  be fo re  

the  pa t en t  a p p l i c a n t ' s  da t e  of invent ion .  The 1960 showing was d isp layed  by 

a p p l i c a n t ' s  a s s ignee ,  not  by "o thers . "  Moreover, t he  record  suppor ts  t he  f a c t  

t h a t  P r i c e  and Bals inger  , the  p a t e n t e e s ,  conceived and developed the  s u b j e c t  
, 

mat te r  of t he  pa t en t  p r i o r  t o  the  1960 show. In a d d i t i o n ,  t h e r e  i s  no 

evidence i n  the  record t o  support  any a s s e r t i o n  t h a t  P r i c e  and Bals inger  were 

not t h e  f i r s t  i nven to r s  o f  t h e  s u b j e c t  ma t t e r .  

( i i )  Anticipation--lOZ(b).  Respondents a l s o  a s s e r t  t h a t  the  s u i t  pa t en t  

i s  not v a l i d  because of 35 U.S. Code i 0 2 ( b )  which provides:  

A person s h a l l  be e n t i t l e d  t o  a pa ten t  un less  . . . ( b )  t he  
inven t ion  was pa ten ted  o r  descr ibed  i n  a p r i n t e d  pub l i ca t ion  i n  t h i s  
o r  a f o r e i g n  country or  in publ ic  use or  on s a l e  i n  t h i s  count ry ,  
more than one year  p r i o r  t o  the  da t e  o f  t he  a p p l i c a t i o n  f o r  p a t e n t  
i n  the United S t a t e s  . . . 

In order  t o  e s t a b l i s h  l ack  of novel ty  o r  a n t i c i p a t i o n  under 35 U.S.C. 102('0), 

a l l  clairn elements m u s t  be found i n  a s i n g l e  p r i o r  a r t  r e f e rence  where they 
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are combined i n  t h e  same way and perform t h e  same f u n c t i o n s  t h e r e i n .  

M a r s h a l l ,  578 F.2d 301  (C .C.P .A.  1 9 7 8 ) .  Respondent 's  argument o f  a n t i c i p a t i o n  

- I n  re 

i s  baaed upon t h e  K l i n g e l e  p a t e n t  (RX 1 5 0 )  which d i s c l o s e d  an a u t o m a t i c  r o t a r y  

i n d e x i n g  as a part o f  t h e  comple te  a u t o m a t i c  machine.  Respondent alleges t h a t  

t h e  mere u s e  o f  a known L a n d i s  c r a n k s h a f t  i n d e x i n g  d e v i c e  from Rocks 2 , 6 5 1 , 8 9 5  

(RX 1 8 3 )  or K l i n g e l e  i n  a c r a n k p i n  g r i n d e r  added n o t h i n g  t o  t h e  t e c h n o l o g y  

o v e r  t h e  t e a c h i n g  o f  K l i n g e l e .  

Compla inant ' s  expert, D r .  Youngdahl,  t e s t i f i e d  w i t h  r e s p e c t  t o  s u i t  

p a t e n t  claim 16 t h a t  K l i n g e l e  d i d  not  d i s c l o s e  a caliper o p e r a b l e  when a 

c r a n k p i n  i s  ground to  s i z e .  I n  a d d i t i o n ,  r e s p o n d e n t ' s  expert, M r .  Fisher,  

v e r i f i e d  t h a t  K l i n g e l e  d i d  n o t  i n c l u d e  a cal iper ,  b u t  i n s t e a d  u t i l i z e d  cam 

w h e e l s  which i n i t i a t e d  a s t o p p i n g  o f  t h e  g r i n d i n g  c y c l e ,  r e t r a c t i o n  o f  t h e  

g r i n d i n g  w h e e l ,  and cananencement of i n d e x i n g  t h e  c r a n k s h a f t  when t r i g g e r e d  by 

t h e  g r i n d i n g  wheel  support  r e a c h i n g  a predetermined p o s i t i o n  as measured by a 

cam on t h e  cam wheel .  

K l i n g e l e  does  n o t  t e a c h  a l o c a t i n g  d e v i c e ,  and means a c t u a t e d  by s a i d  s t o p p i n g  

means t o  a c t u a t e  s a i d  l o c a t i n g  d e v i c e  t o  e f fect  p r e c i s i o n  l o n g i t u d i n a l  

l o c a t i o n  of s a i d  c r a n k p i n  and s a i d  g r i n d i n g  w h e e l s  as s p e c i f i e d  i n  claim 1 9  o f  

F u r t h e r ,  t h e  r e c o r d  s u p p o r t s  t h e  j u d g e ' s  f i n d i n g  t h a t  

t h e  s u i t  p a t e n t .  

a gauge which i s  used manual ly  t o  o b t a i n  a precise l o n g i t u d i n a l  p o s i t i o n  o f  

t h e  f i r s t  c r a n k p i n  t o  be ground and which i s  n o t  a c t i v a t e d  by any  s t o p p i n g  

means. Most i m p o r t a n t l y ,  s i n c e  a claim o f  a n t i c i p a t i o n  c a n n o t  l e g a l l y  be 

s u s t a i n e d  by m u l t i p l e  p r i o r  art r e f e r e n c e s ,  r e s p o n d e n t s '  a l l e g a t i o n  o f  

i n v a l i d i t y  based on 1 0 2 ( b )  f a i l s .  

I n  K l i n g e l e ,  u n l i k e  t h e  s u i t  p a t e n t ,  t h e  l o c a t i n g  device i s  
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(iii) Obviousness - Section 103. 35 U . S . C .  103 provides: 

A patent may not he obtained though the invention is not identically 
disclosed or described as set forth in section 102 of this title, if 
the differences between the subject matter sought to be patented and 
the prior art are such that the subject matter as a whole would have 
been obvious at the time the invention was made to a person having 
ordinary skill in the art to which said subject matter pertains . . . 
In applying the statutory test of non-obviousness, the Supreme Court in 

the landmark case of Graham v. John Deere Co., 383 U.S. 1, 17 (1966) stated as 

follows: 

Under section 103, the scope and content of the prior art are to be 
determined; differences between the prior art and the claims at 
issue are to be ascertained; and the level of ordinary skill in the 
pertinent art resolved. Against this background the obviousness or 
non-obviousness of the subject matter is determined. Such secondary 
considerations as commercial success, longfelt but unsolved needs, 
failure by others, etc:, might be utilized to give light to the 
circumstances surrounding the origin of the subject matter sought t o  
be patented. As indicia of obviousness or non-obviousness, these 
inquiries may have relevancy. 

The administrative law judge applied the John Deere three-pronged test 

and determined that on the record there is insufficient evidence to show that 

the difference between the suit patent claims and the prior art are such that 

the subject matter as a whole would have been obvious at the time the 

invention was made to a person having ordinary skill in the art. 

Respondent contends that the only difference between the suit patent 

claims 8 ,  16, and 19 and the Klingele patent is the caliper or size control 

member and the longitudinal locating device which, in the light of Rock, 

Salsinger and Happel, would have been obvious to one skilled in the art at the 

time of the invention, and therefore not such an inventive advance in the art 

to warrant patent protection. As previously discussed under the anticipation 
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section, Klingele taught an automatic multiple crankpin grinder which ground 

all the crankpins on a crankshaft without handling the crankshaft after it is 

put into the machine. It had automatic means for rotary and lateral indexing 

the crankshaft on the fly from one crankpin to the next in predetermined 

sequence. However, unlike suit patent claims 8,  16 ,  and 19, it had a manual 

means (gauge) for longitudinal movement of the crankpin to a predetermined 

position relative to the grinding wheel and an imprecise means for stopping 

the grinding cycle when the crankpin is ground to the desired size. The 

Klingele patent did not teach the caliper precision sizing device or the 

precision longitudinal locater disclosed by the suit patent claims. While 

these two innovative devices were otherwise developed prior to the invention 

date by complainant, the fact remains that all these elements had never 

previously been incorporated in one embodiment prior to complainant's 

automatic crankpin grinder. 

In addition, the disclosures of Klingele were never reduced to practice 

in the form of a working machine produced for the trade. A paper patent such 

as Klingele, the utility of which has never been demonstrated in actual 

experience, is to be construed strictly and is not entitled to the same 

breadth of construction which might be warranted by a machine of proved 

usefulness. Foster v. Chrysler, 33 F.Supp, 36 (W.D. Pa. 1940). Within two 

years after the public showing in 1960 of the suit patent's embodiment in 

complainant's grinder, the invention had substantially replaced the transfer 

type of crankpin grinders as the dominant sales item in the domestic market. 

Such reversal of direction and commercial success in the marketplace is 

indicative of nonobviousness and an advance over existing automatic crankpin 
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grinder technology. Other indicia of non-obviousness suggested by Graham V. 

John Deere include tribute (royalties) were paid by licensees and there was 

recognition of the patent by others including respondents through request for 

license rights. 

(iv) Use requirement--Section 112. 35 U . S . C .  section 112 provides in 

part: 

The specification shall contain a written description of the 
invention, and of the manner and process of making and using it, in 
such full, clear, concise, and exact terms as to enable any person 
skilled in the art to which it pertains, or with which it is most 
nearly connected, to make and use the same. . . 

The purpose of this provision is to enable any person skilled in the art to 

which it pertains to use the invention. Respondents' argument that the patent 

is invalid because of 35 U.S.C. section 112 is completely without merit 

because even respondent's own witness, Mr. Wheeler, indicated that he could 

easily correct three minor errors in the patent diagram by utilizing his 

skills in the art. In addition, complainant's expert testified that he had no 

problem understanding the specification of the suit patent. 

c. Enforceability of the patent. Respondents contend that even if the 

patent i s  valid, it is unenforceable. 

(i) Laches. Respondent contends that complainant committed laches by 

bringing no infringement action against respondent until 1078, even though 

respondent sold a similar machine to Ford in 1970. There is no merit to this 

allegation based upon the facts in this case. Laches requires not only the 

passage of an undue length of time in enforcing a right of action, but also 

that the adverse party >as been induced through the neglect of the enforcing 

party to change its position as t o  the property or right in question, The 
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facts in this case reveal that the most likely defendant in a 1970 

infringement action was a then bankrupt company A.I.M. which was the exclusive 

distributor in the United States of the respondent's grinder. The record also 

shows a continued awareness and concern by respondent Newall of the possible 

infringement of the complainant's patent as witnessed by the repeated opinions 

of counsel on this issue. 

As a matter of law, there is also a division among legal authorities as 

to whether a charge of laches, if proved, can have a prospective effect. In 

the Recloseable Plastic Bag 337-TA-22 (19771, the Commission preserved its 

flexibility by allowing determination of this issue on the merits in each 

case, bearing in mind that under section 337 there is no requirement that the 

unfair act be discovered by a certain time. 

(ii) FraudIInequitable Conduct. Respondents further contend that even 

if the patent is valid, it is unenforceable because complainant breached its 

duty of candor by failing to disclose to the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office 

the Klingele patent. While it is true that patent applicants have the duty of 

disclosing to the Patent and Trademark Office all information material to the 

examination of the application, the courts have held that a party asserting 

invalidity of a patent on the ground of fraud must prove that the applicant 

intentionally withheld relevant information and that the Patent and Trademark 

Office would not have authorized the patent's issuance if the information had 

been disclosed. Corometrics Medical Systems, Inc. v.  Berkely Bio-Engineering, 

4, Inc 193 U.S.P.Q. 467 (N.D. Cal. 1977). The record in this investigation 

indicates that, while the Klingele patent was not cited during the prosecution 

of the suit patent, the suit patent did cite the Rocks patent as a prior 
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reference and Rocks in turn cited the Klingele reissue patent. In addition, 

the administrative law judge fully considered Klingele and still determined 

that the suit patent was valid in spite of Klingele. In view of the fact that 

the evidentiary record does not establish that complainant intentionally 

withheld material information from or attempted to deceived the Patent and 

Trademark Office, respondents' allegation that the patent is Unenforceable 

because of the failure to cite the Klingele patent is without merit. While we 

agree with the respondents that it cannot be assumed that the patent exam: 7 ner 

was aware of Klingele merely because it was a reference in another patent 

cited as prior art, nevertheless, as considered by the administrative law 

judge, it is persuasive evidence that no fraud was intended by the complainant. 

Patent Misuse. Respondents contend that the suit patent is also 

unenforceable by reason of complainant's misuse of the patent by illegally 

extending the scope of monopoly granted under the patent. An examination of 

the record in this investigation supports the administrative law judge's 

determination that the essential nexus between the suit patent and 

complainant's licensing agreements with its foreign Licensees has not been 

established by the respondents. The record does not establish any substantial 

antitrust violation directly connected with the suit patent, and therefore 

does not support respondents' allegation of patent misuse. 

d .  Efficiently and economically operated domestic industry. It is 

uncontested that the domestic industry consists of the facilities of 

complainant Landis and its domestic licensee Warner and Swasey which are 

devoted to the production of automatic crankpin grinders covered by the suit 

patent. Respondents' allegation that the domestic industry is not efficiently 
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and economically operated is completely without merit. 

that the complainant's portion of the domestic industry, as measured by the 

various criteria used by the Commission in past cases including use of modern 

equipment and procedures, sufficient working capital, high investment in 

The record indicates 

research and development, incentive benefit programs for employees, and 

sustained profitable operation, is efficiently and economically operated. 

Respondents disputed the alleged efficient and economic operation of the 

complainant on the grounds that unacceptably long delivery quotation dates 

indicate inability to meet the changing needs of the marketplace, and it has a 

history of labor strikes and chronically late deliveries of machines after 

quoted delivery dates. 

strikes in 1976 and 1977 were anything except isolated incidents. 

addition, growing backlog in a cyclical industry does not necessarily indicate 

substantial inefficiency or uneconomic operation of the industry. Moreover, 

complainant has made efforts to shrink its backlog, including increasing its 

production facilities. 

No evidence in the record indicates that the two labor 

In 

e. Injury. The crankpin grinders involved in this investigation are 

massive machines weighing approximately 20 tons. 

one year to complete fabrication of the machines, which are manufactured 

according to the customer's specifications. 

It requires approximately 

This investigation was triggered by the importation and sale of eight 

crankpin grinders manufactured by respondent Newall and sold to respondent 

Ford in 1977-1978. Previously one grinder had been sold in 1970 to Ford by 

A.I.M., which was the respondent's exclusive distributor of grinders in the 

. United States. Although the record does not establish directly any additional 

... 
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imports, the record suggests that one additional grinder was imported and sold 

by the respondents after the close of the evidentiary record and prior to the 

C ommi s s i on or a 1 hear i ng . 
Both complainant and respondent Newall's quoted price to respondent Ford 

on the eight machines subsequently installed in Ford's Cleveland Engine Plant 

No. 1 exceeded a quarter of a million dollars for each machine. Respondent's 

price for the eight machines exceeded complainant's quoted price by a 

significant amount, but respondent promised delivery of the grinders two 

months earlier than complainant. Complainant, who was the only other bidder 

on the order from Ford of eight grinders, lost the sale to respondent Newall 

at a time when its production schedule would have permitted it to fill the 

orders. The record supports the fact that these lost sales would have been 

profitable for complainant. Respondents' argument that complainant might not 

have received the order if Newall had not been the successful bidder, is not 

persuasive because there were only two bidders and it is fair to assume as did 

the administrative law judge that under these circumstances complainant lost 

the sales. 

These lost sales had the effect or tendency of causing the loss of gross 

sales and profits, decreased production and production economies, weakened 

capital improvement programs, reduced capability to bear risks of innovation 

and reduced capability of maintaining a pool of highly skilled employees in 

the crankpin grinder art. Despite the current upswing in complainant's sales 

and profits, this is a cyclical industry which can be quickly affected by a 

downturn in the automotive industry or unfair competition. The ability of the 

complainant to adjust to the cyclical nature of the industry has been impaired 

by these unfair imports. 
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In view of our finding of injury to the domestic industry and our 

determination to issue no remedy on the basis of public interest, we do not 

reach the question of whether orders placed for goods before but not 

deliverable until after expiration of the suit patent can constitute injury 

, under section 337. Accordingly, we do not adopt the administrative law 

judge's view that respondents' contention is fallacious that orders placed 

before but not delivered until after expiration of the suit patent cannot 

constitute injury under section 337. 

Public interest factors 

Subsections (d) and (f) of section 337 require the Commission after it 

has determined that a violation of the statute exists also to determine 

whether the effect of an exclusion order or a cease and desist order upon the 

public health and welfare, competitive conditions in the United States 

economy, the production o f  like or directly competitive articles in the United 

States, and United States consumers preclude the issuance of a remedy. The 

Trade Act of 1974 added the public interest determination to section 337. The 

legislative history of this provision reveals that Congress intended the 

public interest factors to be the overriding considerations in the 

administration of the statute: 

The Committee believes that the public health and welfare and the 
assurance of competitive conditions in the United States economy must be 
the overriding considerations in the administration of this statute. 
Therefore, under the Committee bill, the Commission must examine (in 
consultation with the other Federal agencies) the effect of issuing an 
exclusion order or a cease and desist order on the public health and 
welfare before such order is issued. Should the Commission find that 
issuing an exclusion order would have a greater adverse impact on the 
public health and welfare; on competitive conditions in the United States 
economy; on production of like or directly competitive articles in the 
United States; or on the United States consumer, than would be gained by 
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protecting the patent holder (within the context of the U . S .  patent laws) 
then the Committee feels that such exclusion order should not be issued. 
This would be particularly true in cases where there is any evidence of 
price gouging or monopolistic practices in the domestic industry. - 1/ 
This is the first time the Commission has determined that the pqblic 

interest factors preclude imposition of a remdy. The primary reason for our 

determination is that the domestic industry cannot supply the demand for new 

orders of the patented product within a commercially reasonable length of 

time. This conclusion is supported by the evidentiary record as well as by 

the information received by the Commission in the remedy, bonding, and public 

interest portion of the investigation. 

that complainant's backlog of ordered but undelivered goods is extensive. 

The administrative law judge found 

Neither complainant nor its domestic licensee can make delivery on a new order 

to a domestic customer prior to the expiration of the patent. 

Further, the statement of Mr. L. M. Chicoine, Vice President Purchasing 

and Supply of Ford Motor Company, filed November 13, 1979, alleged that the 

availability of crankpin grinders to Ford is a critical element in Ford's 

program to meet the fuel economy standards mandated by Congress. Ford 

represented that when it determined in 1979 to introduce a new engine program 

for the 1982 model year, it first considered rebuilding some of its existing 

crankpin grinders for use in grinding crankshafts for the new engines. 

Complainant was asked to quote on the rebuilding of the existing machines, 

which it had originally produced. When complainant declined to quote a price, 

Ford decided to purchase new grinders. The following delivery schedules based 

upon Nay, 1979, quotes were received: 

- 1/ S .  Rep. No. 9.3-1298, 93rd Cong., 2d Sess. 197 (1974). 
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complainant - 102-122 weeks 
complainant's domestic licensee - April, 1981 
respondent Newall - July, 1980 
Sumitorno Corp. (Toyoda) - 52 weeks 

Ford alleged that if it is limited t o  purchasing crankpin grinders only from 

complainant or its domestic licensee, Warner and Swasey, Ford's ability to 

meet the fuel economy standards by the production of smaller engines will be 

severely jeopardized, if not foreclosed. The written submission of 

Caterpillar Tractor Company also supported the vi.ew that the exclusion of the 

automatic crankpin grinders involved in this investigation would have a 

negative effect on its diesel engine production. 

With the enactment of the Energy Policy and Conservation Act, l/ the - 
automobile industry was required to improve the fuel efficiency of its 

automobiles. Under a timetable established in part by Congress and in part by 

the Secretary of Transportation, all manufacturers of automobiles are required 

to meet, on a fleet-wide basis, the following fuel economy standards: 

1979 - 15 MPH 
1980 - 20 NPH 
1981 - 22 EIPH 
1982 - 24 MPH 
1983 - 26 FlPH 
1984 - 27 MPH 
1985 - 27.5 MPH 2/ - 

In addition, the energy crisis has been an important factor in 

stimulating activity in the domestic automotive engine plants, which in turn 

has benefited complainant's business. Respondents introduced at the 

evidentiary hearing the deposition of Plr. L. E. Jenneke, complainant's chief 

- 1/ P.L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871, Dec. 22, 1975. 
- 2/ 49 CFR Section 531.5(a). 
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execu t ive  o f f i c e r ,  olio s t a t e d  t h a t  " the energy c r i s i s  along with t h e  EPA 

r e g u l a t i o n s  s t i inu la ted  the a c t i v i t y  i n  the  domestic automotivz engine p l a n t s  

and t h e  crankpin g r i n d e r  bus iness  has  picked up." ( t r a n s c r i p t  394-3951 

I n  view of the f a c t  t h a t  Congress and the  P r e s i d e n t  have also c l e a r l y  

e s t a b l i s h e d  a p o l i c y  r e q u i r i n g  automotive companies t o  inc rease  tlic f u e l  

economy of the  automobiles they produce and t h a t  some of t hese  companies are 

encounter ing d i f f i c u l t i e s  i n  o b t a i n i n g  automatic crankpin g r i n d e r s  oli a t ime ly  

b a s i s ,  t o  produce the  s t a t u t o r i l y  mandated energy e f f i c i e n t  automobiles,  we 

b e l i e v e  t h a t  i t  i s  not  i n  t h e  pub l i c  i n t e r e s t  t o  provide a remedy i n  t h i s  

case .  I n  t h i s  per iod of r ap id  changes i n  the  energy f i e l d ,  t h e r e  a r e  

o v e r r i d i n g  pub l i c  i n t e r e s t  c o n s i d e r a t i o n s  i:i not o rde r ing  a remedy which will 

hamper the  supply of energy e f f i c i e n t  automobiles. This i s  not merely a 

rnatter of meeting the  demands of i n d i v i d u a l  consuiiiers f o r  f u e l  e f f i c i e n t  

automobiles.  

t he  p rov i s ion  of energy e f f i c i e n t  al ternatives r ep resen ted  i n  this case by 

automobiles with more e f f i c i e n t  engines  which are produced with tlie a s s i s t a n c e  

of  crankpin g r i n d e r s  which a r e  t h e  s u b j e c t  of t h i s  i n v e s t i g a t i o n .  The engine 

needs of automotive compmies cannot always be a n t i c i p a t e d  two or  more years  

i n  advance. i/ 
c o n s i d e r a t i o n s ,  namely the  domestic i n d u s t r y ' s  i n a b i l i t y  t o  supply crankpin 

g r i n d e r s  which can be used t o  produce on a t imely h s i s  more energy e f f i c i e n t  

The pub l i c  as a whole has  an i n t e r e s t  i n  Fonserving f u e l  through 

' l 'herefore,  c7e have concluded t h a t  t he  pub l i c  i n t e r e s t  

1/ See f o r  exanple the  Wall S t r e e t  Journal  o f  I;ov. 7 ,  1 9 7 9 ,  on "Eiany W110 
Orzei-ed GI-I Compacts Find l h e y ' r e  i n  S low Lane" which d e s c r i b e s  the  s i t u a t i o n  
f a c i n g  General IIotors i n  which i t  i n c o r r e c t l y  f o r e c a s t  the demnnd f o r  4 
cy l inde r  engines  r a t h e r  than G c y l i n d e r  ones. 
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automobiles, and the engine producer's need for additional automatic crankpin 

grinders prior to the expiration of the patent are stronger than complainant's 

rights to enforcement of its patent monopoly through a remedy pursuant to 

section 337. 

section 3 3 7 ,  which we have found to exist. 

Accordingly, we are providing no remedy for the violation of 





S e p a r a t e  Views of  Chairman Joseph 0. P a r k e r  

I n  i n v e s t i g a t i o n  No. 337-TA-60, I concur  i n  t h e  o p i n i o n  o f  my 

c o l l e a g u e s  t h a t  a n  u n f a i r  nethod o f  c o m p e t i t i o n  and u n f a i r  act exists i n  

t h e  i m p o r t a t i o n  o r  sale o f  c e r t a i n  a u t o m a t i c  c r a n k p i n  g r i n d e r s  which 

i n f r i n g e  claims 8,  1 6 ,  and 1 9  o f  U.S. L e t t e r s  P a t e n t  No. 3 , 1 1 8 , 2 5 8  and t h a t  

t h e r e  i s  a v i o l a t i o n  o f  s e c t i o n  337 o f  t h e  T a r i f f  A c t  o f  1 9 3 0 ,  as amended. 

I n  t h i s  r e g a r d ,  I adopt  t h e  f i n d i n g s  o f  fact and c o n c l u s i o n s  o f  law o f  

t h e  A d m i n i s t r a t i v e  Law Judge t o  t h e  e x t e n t  n o t  i n c o n s i s t e n t  w i t h  t h e  

m a j o r i t y  o p i n i o n .  

S u b s e c t i o n s  (d) and (f) o f  s e c t i i o n  3 3 7 ,  however,  r e q u i r e  t h e  Commission, 

after i t  h a s  determined t h a t  a v i o l a t i o n  of t h e  s t a t u t e  exists ,  t o  d e t e r m i n e  

whether  t h e  i s s u a n c e  o f  a remedy pursuant  t o  e i t h e r  o f  t h o s e  two s u b s e c t i o n s  

i s  prec luded by a c o n s i d e r a t i o n  o f  t h e  f a c t o r s  set f o r t h  i n  t h o s e  s u b s e c t i o n s .  

S u b s e c t i o n  (d) p r o v i d e s  : 

(d) E x c l u s i o n  o f  art icles  from e n t r y . - I f  t h e  Commission 
d e t e r m i n e s  as a r e s u l t  o f  a n  i n v e s t i g a t i o n  under t h i s  
s e c t i o n ,  t h a t  t h e r e  i s  a v i o l a t i o n  o f  t h i s  s e c t i o n ,  i t  
s h a l l  d i r e c t  t h a t  t h e  art icles  concerned imported by any 
p e r s o n  v i o l a t i n g  t h e  p r o v i s i o n  o f  t h i s  s e c t i o n  b e  exc luded 
from e n t r y  i n t o  t h e  Uni ted  S t a t e s ,  u n l e s s ,  after c o n s i d e r i n g  
t h e  effect o f  such  e x c l u s i o n  upon t h e  p u b l i c  h e a l t h  and 
welfare, c o m p e t i t i v e  c o n d i t i o n s  o f  t h e  United S t a t e s  economy, 
t h e  p r o d u c t i o n  o f  l i k e  o r  d i r e c t l y  c o m p e t i t i v e  ar t ic les  i n  t h e  
U n i t e d  S t a t e s ,  and Uni ted  S t a t e s  consumers ,  it f i n d s  t h a t  
such  art icles  should  n o t  b e  exc luded from e n t r y .  . . . 

The p u b l i c  i n t e r e s t  c o n s i d e r a t i o n s  provided f o r  i n  s e c t i o n  337 were added 

by t h e  Trade  A c t  o f  1 9 7 4 .  The l e g i s l a t i v e  h i s t o r y  o f  t h i s  p r o v i s i o n  as 

d e s c r i b e d  i n  t h e  S e n a t e  Report  o f  t h e  Committee on F i n a n c e ,  reveals t h a t  t h e  

Congress  in tended t h e  p u b l i c  i n t e r e s t  f a c t o r s  enumerated i n  t h e  s ’ t a t u t e  t o  

b e  t h e  o v e r r i d i n g  c o n s i d e r a t i o n s  i n  t h e  a d m i n i s t r a t i o n  o f  t h e  s t a t u t e .  That  

r e p o r t  states : 
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The Committee b e l i e v e s  t h a t  t h e  pub l i c  h e a l t h  and w e l f a r e  
and t h e  a s su rance  of compe t i t i ve  cond i t ions  i n  t h e  United 
States economy must be t h e  o v e r r i d i n g  cons ide ra t ions  i n  t h e  
a d m i n i s t r a t i o n  of thtls s t a t u t e .  Therefore ,  under t h e  Committee 
b i l l ,  t h e  Commission must examine ( i n  c o n s u l t a t i o n  wi th  t h e  
o t h e r  Federal  agencies)  t h e  e f f e c t  of i s s u i n g  an exclusion 
o rde r  o r  a cease and d e s i s t  o r d e r  on t h e  pub l i c  h e a l t h  and 
w e l f a r e  b e f o r e  such o r d e r  i s  i s sued .  Should. the Commission 
f i n d  t h a t  i s s u i n g  an exc lus ion  o rde r  would have a g r e a t e r  
adve r se  impact on t h e  p u b l i c  h e a l t h  and we l fa re ;  on compe t i t i ve  
cond i t ions  i n  t h e  United States economy; on product ion of 
l i k e  o r  d i r e c t l y  competi t ive a r t ic les  i n  t h e  United S t a t e s ;  o r  
on t h e  United States consumer, than would be gained by pro- 
t e c t i n g  t h e  p a t e n t  ho lde r  (wi th in  t h e  con tex t  of t h e  U.S.  
p a t e n t  laws) then  t h e  Committee f e e l s  t h a t  such exc lus ion  o rde r  
should n o t  b e  i s sued .  This  would b e  p a r t i c u l a r l y  t r u e  i n  
cases where t h e r e  is  any evidence of p r i c e  gouging o r  monopolis t ic  
p r a c t i c e s  i n  t h e  domestic i ndus t ry .  - 1/ 

The p u b l i c  i n t e r e s t  record i n  t h i s  i n v e s t i g a t i o n  is composed of t h e  

o r a l  argument presented a t  t h e  hea r ing  he ld  on October 29, 1979, and a l s o  

t h e  w r i t t e n  submissions f i l e d  pursuant t o  t h e  Commission n o t i c e  of 

October 11, 1979. Wr i t t en  submissions were rece ived  from t h e  f o u r  p a r t i e s ,  

two government agenc ie s ,  and two non-party co rpora t ions  which u s e  crankpin 

g r i n d e r s .  The two non-party co rpora t ions  were 

and t h e  C a t e r p i l l a r  T rac to r  Co., both of whose 

November 1 3 ,  1979. 
t 

The p o s i t i o n  of t h e  p a r t i e s  respondent i n  

t h e  General Motors Corp. 

submissions were made on 

t h i s  i n v e s t i g a t i o n  and a l s o  

t h e  non-party co rpora t ions  who submit ted p u b l i c  i n t e r e s t  s t a t emen t s  i s  

e s s e n t i a l l y  t h a t  N e w e l 1  c o n s t i t u t e s  a primary a l t e r n a t e  sou rce  of crankpin 

g r i n d e r s  f o r  t h e  United S t a t e s  market, t h a t  t h e  complainant Landis i s  unable  

t o  supply t h e  domestic market f o r  t h e  remainder of t h e  per iod of complainant 's  

p a t e n t ,  and t h a t  t h e r e f o r e ,  any domestic need f o r  automatic crankpin g r i n d e r s  

during t h i s  per iod would remain u n f i l l e d  were t h e  Commission t o  exclude imported 

crankpin g r i n d e r s  from t h e  United S t a t e s  market. More s p e c i f i c a l l y ,  respondent 

- 1/ S. Rept. No. 93-1298, 93rd Cong., 2d Sess .  197 (1974). 
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Ford Motor eo . ,  by t h e i r  Vice P res iden t  of purchasing 'and supply,  M r .  L.  M. 

Chicoine,  s t a t e d  t h a t  t h e  a v a i l a b i l i t y  of crankpin g r i n d e r s  t o  Ford is  a 

c r i t i c a l  element i n  Ford 's  program t o  meet t h e  f u e l  economy s t anda rds  mandated 

by Congress and t h a t  Ford's a b i l i t y  t o  meet t h e s e  s t anda rds  w i l l  b e  s e v e r e l y  

j eopa rd ized ,  i f  no t  f o r e c l o s e d ,  i f  Ford's source of supply is  l i m i t e d  t o  

complainant Landis o r  i t s  domestic l i c e n s e e  Warner and Swazey. 

made by M r .  D. F. Dominick, Vice P res iden t  o f  C a t e r p f l l a r  T rac to r  Co., s t a t e d  

t h a t  a dec i s ion  i n  f avor  of excluding imported crankpin g r i n d e r s  would have 

an i n h i b i t i n g  and n e g a t i v e  e f f e c t  on C a t e r p i l l a r ' s  a b i l i t y  t o  produce d e i s e l  

engines i n  1980 and 1981. 

c u r r e n t l y  quotes 122 weeks l e a d  t i m e  f o r  d e l i v e r y  which is t h e  longes t  l e a d  

t i m e  f o r  any machine used i n  Caterpil lar 's  engine component manufacturing 

c a p a b i l i t y  and t h a t  similar imported crankpin g r i n d e r s  have a s u b s t a n t i a l l y  

s h o r t e r  l e a d  t i m e  f o r  d e l i v e r y .  

The submission 

C a t e r p i l l a r  a l s o  s t a t e d  t h a t  complainant Landis 

It is  clear,  on t h e  b a s i s  of t h i s  r eco rd ,  t h a t  Landis cannot d e l i v e r  any 

a d d i t i o n a l  crankpin g r i n d e r s  t o  meet market needs f o r  a t  least 2 yea r s .  

The e x p i r a t i o n  d a t e  of Landis '  '258 p a t e n t , i s  January 21, 1981. I n  t h e  Ford 

pub l i c  i n t e r e s t  submission which is based on quo ta t ions  da t ed  in May 1979, 

i t  w a s  s t a t e d  t h a t  f o r e i g n  manufacturers of crankpin g r i n d e r s  may be a b l e  t o  

supply t h e  needs of t h e  U.S. automobile companies as well as o t h e r  p o t e n t i a l  

domestic purchasers  over t h e  cour se  of t h e  nex t  1 4  months. 

On t h e  b a s i s  of t h e  evidence and t h e  f a i l u r e  06 complainant t o  show 

t h a t  it can supply a d d i t i o n a l  crankpin g r i n d e r s  i n  q u a n t i t i e s  needed t o  meet 

market needs and t o  enable  t h e  domestic i n d u s t r y  t o  meet f u e l  economy s t a n d a r d s ,  

I b e l i e v e  t h a t  i t  i s  n o t  i n  t h e  pub l i c  i n t e r e s t  t o  completely exclude imported 

crankpin g r i n d e r s  from t h e  domestic market. Therefore ,  I have determined 

t h a t  t h e  a p p r o p r i a t e  r e l i e f  i n  t h i s  ca se ,  i n  l i g h t  of t h e  p u b l i c  i n t e r e s t  and 

the . r emed ia1  n a t u r e  of s e c t i o n  337, i s  t h e  i s suance  of an  exc lus ion  o rde r  
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prevent ing t h e  importat ion of t h e  i n f r i n g i n g  art icles during t h e  l i f e  of t h e  

p a t e n t ,  except under l i c e n s e ,  o r  i n  t h e  absence of t h e  complainant g ran t ing  a 

l i c e n s e ,  except  t h a t  t h e  e n t r y  o f  unlicensed a r t ic les  s h a l l  b e  permit ted 

upon t ende r  by t h e  importer t o  complainant Landis,  t h e  pa t en t  owner, of a 

payment i n  an amount equal  t o ,  but  n o t  t o  exceed t h e  maximum l i c e n s e  f e e  

previously e s t a b l i s h e d  by t h e  p a t e n t  owner Landis i n  arms-length agreements 

between t h e  pa t en t  owner, Landis,  and any of i t s  l i c e n s e e s .  I n  t h e  absence 

o f  t h e  d i s c l o s u r e  and establ ishment  of such an amount by complainant,  t h e  

amount which would be r equ i r ed  t o  be tendered would b e  $2500 p e r  imported 

art icle.  

I b e l i e v e  t h a t  t h i s  proposed remedy is  more c o n s i s t e n t  w i th  t :kc  remedial  

n a t u r e  of s e c t i o n  337 and more a p p r o p r i a t e l y  balances both t h e  p r i v a t e  and pub l i c  

i n t e r e s t s  involved than  does t h e  determinat ion of t h e  ma jo r i ty  which would 

no t  provide any remedy a t  a l l .  

w i l l  permit i n f r i n g i n g  a r t i c l e s  t o  e n t e r  and w i l l  g i v e  

competi t ive advantage over l i c e n s e e s  who are requ i r ed  t o  pay r o y a l t y  f e e s .  

would n o t e  t h a t  i n  t h e  p a s t  t h i s  Commission has r epea ted ly  aff i rmed during 

c o n s i d e r a t i o n  of t h e  pub l i c  i n t e r e s t  f a c t o r s  t h a t  t h e r e  is  a s t r o n g  pub l i c  

i n t e r e s t  i n  p r o t e c t i n g  persons who hold a v a l i d  U.S.  p a t e n t  from i n j u r i o u s  

i n f r i n g i n g  imports.  By p e r m i t t i n g  t h e  continued importat ion of i n f r i n g i n g  

f o r e i g n  goods, wh i l e  a t  t h e  same t i m e  r e q u i r i n g  t h e  importer t o  tender  a 

payment of a f i x e d  amount t o  t h e  complainant,  t h i s  Commission would b e  p r o t e c t i n g  

both t h e  pub l i c  i n t e r e s t  i n  promoting t h e  continued a v a i l a b i l i t y  t o  t h e  

United States market of an immediate sou rce  of automatic  crankpin g r i n d e r s ,  

as w e l l  as p r o t e c t i n g  t h e  p u b l i c  i n t e r e s t  which inhe res  i n  a pa ten t  g ran t  by 

t h e  U . S . Government. 

I n  my op in ion ,  t h e  f a i l u r e  t o  provide any remedy 

t h e  respondents a 

I 
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The amount of t h e  payment t o  b e  made upon importat ion should b e  an 

amount commensurate wi th  t h e  pa t en t  owner's previous l i c e n s e  agreements 

a r r i v e d  a t  by arms l e n g t h  agreement between t h e  p a t e n t  owner and any l i c e n s e e .  

It i s  no t  my i n t e n t i o n  t o  e s t a b l i s h  an a r b i t r a r y  l e v e l  of payment, bu t  r a t h e r  t o  

i n s u r e  t h a t  Landis r e c e i v e s ,  w i th  r e spec t  t o  any f u t u r e  importat ions by 

respondents ,  an amount which t h e  pa t en t  owner himself has  p rev ious ly  nego t i a t ed  and 

that: t h e  respondents no t  be given a p r e f e r e n t i a l  compet i t ive p o s i t i o n  over 

e x i s t i n g  l i c e n s e e s .  The p r e s e n t  record r e v e a l s  t h a t  , i n  a t  least two previous 

i n s t a n c e s ,  complainant has  e s t a b l i s h e d  a l i c e n s e  fee of $2500. 

I n  conclusion,  I n o t e  complainant 's  proposal  t h a t  t h i s  Commission i s s u e  

a cease  and d e s i s t  o r d e r  p r o h i b i t i n g  t h e  impor t a t ion ,  sa le ,  o r  c o n t r a c t i n g  

f o r  sa le  of automatic  crankpin g r i n d e r s  by N e w a l l  dur ing t h e  l i f e  of t h e  p a t e n t .  

However, I a m  not  persuaded t h a t  complainant 's  proposal  is t h e  a p p r o p r i a t e  

remedy. The remedy which I have proposed would p e r m i t  t h e  needs o f  t h e  domestic 

market t o  be m e t  wh i l e  a t  t h e  same t i m e  providing some remuneration t o  t h e  

p a t e n t  ho lde r  f o r  t h e  i n f r i n g i n g  impor t a t ion  which may occur during t h e  remaining 

l i f e  of t h e  '258 p a t e n t .  





Supplemental Views o f  Crx b~ ioner Moore 

I concur with the views of the mgjoritv concerning the issue o f  violation 

However, I believe that of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended. 

the issuance, of an exclusion 'order preventing the importation of  infringing 

articles during the life of the patent, except under license, will n o t  

adversely affect the public interee: fvctors outlined in subsection ( d )  of 

section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as ,amended. 

A patent is  a constitutionally granted monopoly. The record in this 

investigation established that complainant utilizes its patent through 

production of automatic crankpin grinders, and the domestic industry i s  

efficiently and economically operated. Moreover, the record established that 

complainant lost substantial sales of the patented product because of 

infringing imports, and there is ?o factual basis to conclude that such 

imports will not continue in the future. 

Based upon this record, I believe the appropriate remedy is an exclusion 

order preventing importation of infringing automatic crankpin grinders, e x c e p t  

under bond. Despite respondent Newall's representation at the Comissio:i  

hearing that it has no outstanding orders for grinders, it i s  p o s s i c l e  ~ L n t  

new orders may be placed and delivered prior to the expiration af :>e r 5 -  

In addition, an exclusion order operates in rem, and it will pre~pb.?P 

importation from other foreign manufacturers as well as from respor,deni  F i . c c ~ t ' ! .  

The exclusion order exception for importa ions under licens2 of  tkr2 

patent holder provides the necessary flexibility for any temporar;? s l ? o r t e g e s  

f 



caused by s t r i k e s  or increasec 

2 

demand. Indeec , the record supports the view 

that complainant has granted a spot l icense  for grinders purchased from Japan 

by reapondent Ford. Moreover, during a past s t r i k e ,  complainant u t i l i z e d  i t s  

foreign l icensees to  produce grinders for the domestic market. 

The e f f e c t  o f  such an exclusion upon the p u b l i c  h e a l t h  and welfare,  

competitive conditions i n  the United S t a t e s  economy, the production o f  l i k e  or 

d i r e c t l y  competitive a r t i c l e s  i n  the United S t a t e s ,  and Uni ted  S t a t e s  

consumers does not preclude issuance o f  the order. The 1egi.slative h i s t o r y  

o f  the public i n t e r e s t  considerations which were added to  sect ion 337 by the 

Trade Act o f  1974, indicates that  Congress was p a r t i c u l a r l y  concerned about 

p r i c e  gouging or monopolistic p r a c t i c e s  i n  the domestic industry. i/ I n  t h i s  

case complainant's prices were lower than the pr ices  o f  the imported grinders,  

and complainant has licensed i t s  patent to another domestic producer as well 

as on a spot basis  to  a foreign producer. 

- 1 /  S. Rep. No. 93-1298, 93rd Cong., 2d Sess. 197 (1974). 


